
Agenda, Regular Board Meeting January 18, 2022 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, all meetings of the Board will be conducted via 
teleconference until further notice, in accordance with CA AB 361. 

JOIN BY COMPUTER: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/407346221 
DIAL-IN (US TOLL-FREE): 1 877 309 2073 
ACCESS CODE: 407-346-221 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-2114.  

(Govt. Code Section 94594.1 and 94594.2 (a)) 

January 18, 2022 at 6:00 pm. 
1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call

3. Approval of the minutes: December 21, 2021, Regular Meeting

4. Public comment for items not appearing on the agenda

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any item 
of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, provided that no 
action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 
authorized by subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2.    
Please Note:  If you have comments on a specific agenda item(s), please fill out a comment card 
and return it to the Board Secretary. The Board President will call on you for your comments at 
the appropriate time, either before or during the Board’s consideration of that item. 

Closed Session Agenda - Adjourn to Closed Session (6:10 pm):  It is the intention of the Board of 
Directors to meet in Closed Session to consider the following items: 

5. Closed Session Items
a) The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters or litigation,

pursuant to attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code Section 54957,
54956.8, & 54956.9 and 54957.

• State Case: SBCK vs. SWRCB, San Francisco Superior Court, Case # CPF-14-513875
• Meiners Oaks Water District vs. Moll, Ostling and Ojai Vista Farms 56-2018-00515474-

CU-OR-VTA/

Page 1 of 54

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/407346221
tel:+18773092073,,407346221


Agenda, Regular Board Meeting January 18, 2022 

Regular Agenda (***Reconvene Regular Meeting, Estimated Time 6:45 p.m.***) 

6. Financial matters

  Approval of Payroll and Payables from December 16, 2021, to January 15, 2022, in the 

  amount of: 

Payables – $ 108,913.91 

Payroll –  $   40,647.20 

Total –           $ 149,561.11 

7. Board action and/or discussion

a) Approve Resolution 20220118: AB 361 – Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a State of
Emergency, subsequent to Resolution 20211221. (Ward) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Approve Resolution 20220118: AB 361.

b) Public Hearing: Approval of Ordinance 22-01-18: Director Compensation, replacing Ordinance
98-10-20. (Etchart/Ward) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Approve Ordinance 22-01-18: Director Compensation.

c) Approve Resolution 20220118-1: Appointing UVRGA Director & Alternate Director for 2022-
2024, replacing Resolution 042021. (Ward) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Approve Resolution 20220118-1: Appointing UVRGA Director &
Alternate Director for 2022-2024.

d) Approve Fanning & Karrh, CPA Financial Audit engagement agreement for FY 2020-2021.
(Martinez/Ward) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Approve Fanning & Karrh, CPA engagement for FY 2020-2021.

e) Approve Resolution 20220118-2: VRIF 2 Grant Planning Projects. (Martinez/Ward) –
Attachment
Recommended Action: Approve Resolution 20220118-2: VRIF 2 Grant Planning Projects.

f) Discuss and provide direction on development of policy for New Meters & Expansion of Services,
moratorium on new meters. (Kentosh) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Provide direction on moratorium for new meters and development of
policy. 

g) Discuss of the next steps for nitrate removal from Well 8. (Kentosh) – No Attachment
Recommended Action: Discussion and provide direction.

h) Receive update on Meiners Road pressure zones. (Kentosh/Martinez) – No Attachment
Recommended Action: Receive update.

8. General Manager’s Report
The Board will receive an update from the General Manager on District Operations and
Maintenance. 

Page 2 of 54



Agenda, Regular Board Meeting January 18, 2022 

9. Board Secretary’s Report
The Board will receive an update from the Board Secretary on District Administrative and
related matters. 

10. Board Committee Reports

• Executive Committee

• UVRGA

• Allocation Program Committee

• Budget/Rate Committee

• Emergency Management Committee

• Staff Procedures Ad-hoc Committee

• New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee

11. Old Business

• State Water
• Matilija Dam Removal Update
• Nitrate Removal – CA Wildlife Conservation Grant

12. Director Announcements/Reports

13. Adjournment The next scheduled Regular Board meeting is February 15, 2022.

Page 3 of 54



Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 21, 2021 

Regular Meeting Meiners Oaks Water District 

December 21, 2021 202 W. El Roblar Drive 

6:00 pm Ojai, CA 93023-2211 

Minutes 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by the Board President, Mike Etchart, at 6:00 pm via
teleconference.

2. Roll Call

Present: Board President, Mike Etchart, Board Directors: James Kentosh, Diana Engle,
Christian Oakland, and Loni Anderson. Staff Present: General Manager, Justin Martinez,
and Board Secretary, Summer Ward. Attorney Present: Stuart Nielson, and Greg Jones -
closed session only.

Absent: None.

3. Approval of the Minutes

Approval of November 16, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes

Director Engle made the motion to approve the November 16, 2021, Regular Meeting
minutes. Director Oakland seconded the motion.

Director Kentosh requested the minutes clarify which attorneys are present for closed
session only and confirmation of the New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee
membership.

No public comment.

Engle/Oakland

Roll Call Vote:

Etchart - Y  Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson - Y

All Ayes – M/S/C

4. Public Comments – None.

**The Board went into closed session at 6:05 pm**

** G. Jones joined at 6:09 pm**

Page 4 of 54



Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 21, 2021 

5. Closed Session: The Board of Directors held a closed session to discuss litigation,
pursuant to the attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code
Sections Ş54957 & 54956.8, 54956.9, and 54957.
• Meiners Oaks Water District v. Moll, Ostling and Ojai Vista Farms 56-2018-00515474-

CU-OR-VTA/

** G. Jones left at 6:40 pm ** 

**The Board adjourned closed session at 6:42 pm** 

Attorney S. Nielson stated that the Board discussed current ongoing litigation in closed 
session, and no actions were taken. 

6. Financial Matters

Approval of Payroll and Payables from November 16 to December 15, 2021, in the
amount of:

Payables:  $133,417.99 

Payroll:  $  41,727.52 

Total:  $175,145.51 

Director Engle made the motion to the Payroll and Payables from November 16 to 
December 15, 2021. Director Oakland seconded the motion. 

Director Engle requested clarification on the status of the Nitrate Removal budget. 

No public comment. 

Engle/Oakland 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart - Y  Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y Anderson - Y 

All Ayes – M/S/C 

7. Board Discussion/Actions
a. Receive and discuss request from customer D. Hill regarding the Meiners Road

tank location. (D. Hill)
Mr. Hill, owner of the property where the Meiners Rd tank and antenna are located,
stated that he is present to discuss the feasibility of the equipment location. Mr. Hill
noted that the old tank came down today. He provided photos of a proposed new
location, closer to Meiners Rd. Mr. Hill offered to meet with District Directors onsite to
discuss options.
Director Kentosh offered to meet with Mr. Hill and Mr. Martinez on site to discuss
options. Director Kentosh noted two requirements still need to be assessed and met,
including Fire Department and Public Health, and recommended getting a water system

Page 5 of 54



Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 21, 2021 

design report.  The Board requested this discussion item be added to the next regular 
meeting agenda. 

No Public Comment. 
No Motion. 

b. Approve Resolution 20211221: AB 361 – Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a
State of Emergency, subsequent to Resolution 20211116. (Ward)
Ms. Ward presented Resolution 20211221: AB 361 - Brown Act: Remote Meetings
During a State of Emergency, subsequent to Resolution 20211116.

Director Anderson made the motion to approve Resolution 20211221: AB 361 - Brown
Act: Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency. Director Engle seconded the
motion.

No Public Comment.

Anderson/Engle

Roll Call Vote:

Etchart - Y  Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson - Y

All Ayes – M/S/C

c. Review revised Ordinance: Director Compensation, for public hearing notice to
publish on 12/24/2021 and 12/31/2021. (Etchart/Ward)

Ms. Ward presented the revised Ordinance 22-01-18: Director Compensation, replacing
Ordinance 98-10-20. Ms. Ward and Attorney S. Nielson reviewed that the participation
in legal, administrative, or other official proceedings on behalf of the District was added
to the policy language. The public hearing notice is scheduled to be published in the
Ojai Valley News on December 24 and 31, 2021. The public hearing is scheduled for
the Regular Board Meeting January 18, 2022.

No Public Comment.

No Motion.

d. Discuss and approve future District financial auditing standards to be followed
per auditor’s recommendations. (Ward/Martinez)

Ms. Ward presented information provided by the District auditor regarding updates to
the auditing requirements. The Government Auditing Standards now have
independence requirements that Fanning & Karrh, CPAs do not feel they can adhere to
under the existing circumstances. The performance of the audit in addition to the
preparation of financial statements and preparation of adjusting journal entries present

Page 6 of 54



Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 21, 2021 

threats to independence. MOWD is not required to follow the Government Auditing 
Standards, but rather the generally accepted auditing standards in the US and State 
Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Should 
MOWD choose to continue with the Government Auditing Standards, a larger firm or an 
additional CPA would be required, at an additional expense to the District. If the District 
chooses to discontinue following the optional standards, Fanning & Karrh, CPAs can 
continue performing the District financial audits. Ms. Ward noted that Ventura River 
Water District does not follow the optional Government Auditing Standards.  

Director Kentosh recommended discontinuing the optional standards and revisit in a 
future year. Director Oakland stated that if not required, the District should not spend 
rate payer money on it.  

The Board was in consensus to discontinue following the optional Government Auditing 
Standards at this time and provided direction to staff to inform the District auditor of its 
decision. 

No Public Comment. 

No Motion. 

8. General Manager’s Report

Mr. Martinez reported that the Casitas Lake level is at 32.7%. The District is currently on 
Casitas water, demand has slowed, and the lower connection was turned off 
10/28/2021. Mr. Martinez has continued working with Patrick at the Division of Drinking 
Water on the blending pilot project. The Meiners Road antenna tower project has been 
completed. The grant applications for source water options and AMI metering are in 
process, pending update from Regina Hirsch. Mr. Martinez reported the 28-day rainfall 
totals, 4.52” at Casitas Dam and 6.18” at Matilija Canyon. Mr. Martinez reported that the 
tank inspection and cleaning was completed, with an official report of recommendations 
pending. The District’s old service truck and golf cart have been listed on GovDeals, 
with the auction scheduled for 14 days. 

No Public Comment. 

9. Board Secretary’s Report

Ms. Ward presented the monthly Board Secretary report, highlighting that the District 
recruitment of the temporary administrative clerk is in process with 78 applicants, the 
CA Executive Order N-42-20 moratorium on customer disconnections for non-payment 
is set to expire December 31, 2021, and public records request from UC 
Berkeley/SPUR regarding customer water shut-offs after March 4, 2020, received 
December 17, 2021. Ms. Ward noted customer arrearage payments stalled, individual 
letters are being mailed to account holders with significantly past due balances. The 
California SWRCB Water Arrearage Payment Program for customer assistance is 
available, the District had not submitted its application yet due to pending clarification 

Page 7 of 54



Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 21, 2021 

regarding tax liability for customers receiving those utility credits. Ms. Ward stated the 
IRS has provided clarification that there would be no tax liability for District customers 
that receive the utility credits. After discussion, the Board was in agreement to proceed 
with submission of the Water Arrearage Payment Program application. Ms. Ward 
reported that work on the Allocation Program billing configuration and bill printing has 
been completed and will proceed with implementation of the new allocations with the 
December 31, 2021 bill statements.  

No Public Comment. 

10. Board Committee Reports
• Executive Committee: No update.
• UVRGA: Director Engle reported that the GSA received a lengthy comment letter 24-hrs

prior to the public hearing and has postponed the hearing for one month, to allow
inclusion of the comments.

• Allocation Committee: See Board Secretary report.
• Budget/Rate Committee: Committee to meet in January.
• Emergency Management Committee: No update.
• Staff Procedures Committee: No update.
• New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee: Committee to meet in January.

11. Old Business
• State Water: Director Kentosh stated that Casitas is in negotiations regarding the

Ventura connection; Casitas will provide an update.
• Matilija Dam Removal Update: No update.
• Nitrate Removal: Director Kentosh reported that he and Mr. Martinez met with MKN to

discuss the draft report, and it looks good; the final report will be provided in January.

12. Director Announcements/Reports
• Director Engle: No report.
• Director Oakland: No report.
• Director Kentosh: Encouraged Directors to sign up for direct deposit, it is an easy

process and to contact Brandi for enrollment.
• Director Anderson: Attended the Ventura River Watershed meeting on December 2,

2021. Discussions included the instream flow document, grants, fire prevention
programs for homeowners, and the CA condor project.

• Director Etchart: No report.

Page 8 of 54



Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 21, 2021 

13. Meeting Adjournment

There being no further business to conduct at this time, Board President Mike Etchart
adjourned the meeting at 7:53 pm.

     ____________________________ _____________________________ 

     Board Secretary    Board President 

Page 9 of 54



Page 10 of 54



Page 11 of 54



Page 12 of 54



Page 13 of 54



Page 14 of 54



Page 15 of 54



$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Ja
n
‐1
9

M
ar
‐1
9

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
l‐
1
9

Se
p
‐1
9

N
o
v‐
1
9

Ja
n
‐2
0

M
ar
‐2
0

M
ay
‐2
0

Ju
l‐
2
0

Se
p
‐2
0

N
o
v‐
2
0

Ja
n
‐2
1

M
ar
‐2
1

M
ay
‐2
1

Ju
l‐
2
1

Se
p
‐2
1

N
o
v‐
2
1

A
m
o
u
n
t 
($
)

MOWD Monthly Expenses 

Expenses

Capital

Total Expense1/19 ‐Wells

12/19 ‐ Gen & Panels

7/2020 Z‐2 6" relocation

$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Ja
n
‐1
9

M
ar
‐1
9

M
ay
‐1
9

Ju
l‐
1
9

Se
p
‐1
9

N
o
v‐
1
9

Ja
n
‐2
0

M
ar
‐2
0

M
ay
‐2
0

Ju
l‐
2
0

Se
p
‐2
0

N
o
v‐
2
0

Ja
n
‐2
1

M
ar
‐2
1

M
ay
‐2
1

Ju
l‐
2
1

Se
p
‐2
1

N
o
v‐
2
1

A
m
o
u
n
t 
($
)

MOWD Income & Expenses 

Total Expense

Income

Page 16 of 54



RESOLUTION NO. 20220118:  

AB 361-Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency (Subsequent) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MEINERS OAKS WATER 
DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, RE-RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION 

OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY CA EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 MARCH 2020, AND RE-
AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES 

OF MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD  
JANUARY 22, 2022 – FEBRUARY 22, 2022 PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS. 

WHEREAS, the MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT is committed to preserving and nurturing 
public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT’s legislative bodies are open 
and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any 
member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative bodies conduct 
their business; and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance 
with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of 
certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 
pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster 
or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as 
described in Government Code section 8558; and  

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or 
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the 
District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological, or human-caused disasters; and 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and  

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the District, specifically, March 4, 2020 CA Governor 
proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in California as a result of the threat of COVID-19; 
despite sustained efforts the virus continues to spread and is impacting nearly all sectors of 
California; and 

WHEREAS, the Ventura County Public Health Officer issued order October 18, 2021 regarding 
the highly transmissible Delta Variant, recommends vaccinated and unvaccinated persons to 
mask and social distance until health metric criteria are met or rescinded, superseded, or 
amended by the Health Officer; and   

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that the ongoing risk posed by the highly 
transmissible COVID-19 virus, will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons 
within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and 

Page 17 of 54



facilities of the District, and desires to proclaim a local emergency and ratify the proclamation of 
state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency, the Board of Directors does hereby find 
that the legislative bodies of MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT shall conduct their meetings 
without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as 
authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall comply 
with the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   

WHEREAS, all meeting agendas, meeting dates, times and manner in which the public may 
attend the meeting and offer public comment by call-in option or internet-based service option, 
are posted at a minimum, on the District website and physically outside the District Office.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 
this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. Proclamation of Local Emergency. The Board hereby proclaims that a local 
emergency now exists throughout the District, and the ongoing risk posed by the highly 
transmissible COVID-19 virus, and, Ventura County Public Health orders for social distancing 
has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within the 
District. 

Section 3. Re-Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 
hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of Emergency, 
effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager, Board Secretary and 
legislative bodies of MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT are hereby authorized and directed to 
take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, 
conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) 
and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of February 22, 2022, or such time the Board of 
Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 
54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of MEINERS OAKS WATER 
DISTRICT may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) of section 54953.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT, 
this 18 day of JANUARY, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Page 18 of 54



1 

Ordinance 22-01-18: Director Compensation 
(Replacing Ordinance 98-10-20) 

AN ORDINANCE TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 
AMENDING DIRECTOR COMPENSATION  

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Water Code (“Water Code”) Section 20201, the governing board of a 
water district may, by ordinance adopted pursuant to Division 10, Chapter 2 of the Water Code and in accordance 
with Water Code Section 20202, increase the compensation received by members of the governing board for each 
day’s attendance at meetings of the board, or for each day’s service rendered as a member of the board by request 
of the board; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 20202, in any such ordinance increasing the amount of 
compensation which may be received by members of the governing board of a water district, the increase may not 
exceed an amount equal to five percent (5%) for each calendar year since the effective date of the last increase; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 20202, any such ordinance may authorize compensation for 
a total of up to ten (10) days in any calendar month; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 98-10-20 adopted by the Board of Directors (“Board”) of 
Meiners Oaks Water District (“MOWD”) following a public hearing held on October 20, 1998, the Board last 
adjusted the amount of compensation authorized to be paid to the members of the Board to the amount of $150.00 
for each full meeting of the Board and $50.00 for each committee meeting, for up to three (3) meetings in any 
calendar month; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to establish the amount of compensation by way of this Ordinance in 
accordance with the provisions of the Water Code; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Water Code Section 20203 and Section 6066 of the California Government 
Code, a public hearing was held on January 18, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., or soon thereafter, and a notice of said hearing 
was duly published in Ojai Valley News, a newspaper of general circulation, once a week for two weeks as follows: 
on December 24, 2021 and December 31, 2021; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT DOES 
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1  The amount of compensation to be received by the members of the Board for each day’s 
attendance at meetings of the Board and for each day’s service rendered by a member of the Board by request of 
the Board shall be in the amount of two hundred fifty dollars ($250). Said increase does not exceed an amount equal 
to five percent (5%) for each calendar year since the date of the last adjustment.  The categories of meetings, 
services, events, and other types of occasions that constitute the performance of official duties and for which said 

Page 19 of 54



2 

compensation shall be paid shall be those specified in the Board Compensation Policy (“Policy”) set forth in Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

Section 2  In accordance with Section 20202 of the California Water Code, no member of the Board 
shall receive the compensation set forth in Section 1 of this Ordinance for more than ten (10) days in any calendar 
month.  

Section 3  All ordinances, resolutions, or administrative actions by the Board, or parts thereof, that 
are inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby superseded only to the extent of such inconsistency. 

Section 4  The President of the Board shall sign this Ordinance and the Secretary of the Board shall 
attest thereto, and pursuant to Section 20204 of the California Water Code, this Ordinance shall take effect sixty 
(60) days from the date of adoption.

Section 5  If any section, subsection, clause or phrase in this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid, 
the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. The Board hereby declares that it would 
have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact 
that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases or the application thereof be held invalid.  

Section 6 The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made an operative part of this 
Ordinance. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18 day of January, 2022, by the following vote: 

Ayes: _________________________________________ 
Noes: _________________________________________ 
Absent: _________________________________________ 

__________________________________ 
Mike Etchart, President 
Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Summer Ward, Board Secretary  

Page 20 of 54



EXHIBIT A 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD COMPENSATION POLICY 

General 

Directors receive $250 per day (“daily meeting stipend”) for each day’s attendance at meetings, as defined in this 
policy.  Such compensation is in addition to any reimbursement for meals, lodging, travel and expenses consistent 
with District policy.  

Meetings And Service Subject To Daily Meeting Stipend  

To be entitled to a daily meeting stipend under this policy, the event in question must constitute one of the following: 

1. A meeting of the Board within the meaning of Government Code section 54952.2(a);

2. A meeting of a District committee within the meaning of Government Code section 54952(b);

3. An advisory body meeting within the meaning of Government Code section 54952(b);

4. A conference, organized educational activity, or similar gathering conducted in compliance with
Government Code section 54952.2(c), including ethics training required by Government Code Section 53234 et 
seq.;  

5. A meeting of any multi-jurisdictional governmental body on which the Director serves as the
District’s designated representative; 

6. The participation by a Board member in legal, administrative, or other official proceedings on behalf
of the District; and 

7. Any meeting attended or service provided on a given day which the Board determines constitutes the
performance of official duties and for which the Board provides approval of payment of a daily meeting stipend, 
including, without limitation, attendance at member agency meetings and/or workshops, participation in District 
staff interviews and/or termination meetings, and production of technical/expert level work of at least two (2) or 
more hours. 

Aggregate Limits 

The number of days for which a Director receives a daily meeting stipend will not exceed the aggregate limits 
established by state law and District policy. Said District policy provides that compensation shall not exceed ten 
(10) meetings/days per month.

Page 21 of 54



Meiners Oaks Water District 1 

Resolution No. 20220118-1 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MEINERS OAKS 3 
WATER DISTRICT APPOINTING DIRECTOR AND ALTERNATE DIRECTOR TO THE 4 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE UPPER VENTURA RIVER GROUNDWATER 5 
AGENCY JOINT POWERS 2022-2024 6 

WHEREAS, the Casitas Municipal Water District, the City of San Buenaventura, 7 
the County of Ventura, the Meiners Oaks Water District, and the Ventura River Water 8 
District (“Member Agency” or “ Member Agencies”) have entered into a joint exercise of 9 
powers agreement (“JPA”) creating the Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency 10 
(“UVR Groundwater Agency”); and 11 

WHEREAS, the JPA requires the governing board of each Member Agency to 12 
appoint a Director to the UVR Groundwater Agency Board of Directors (“UVR 13 
Groundwater Agency Board”) as well as an Alternate Director to represent MOWD’s 14 
interests in the absence of the Director; and 15 

WHEREAS, in order to be eligible for appointment as a Director or Alternate 16 
Director, an individual shall be either a member of MOWD’s staff or of the Board of 17 
Directors and shall cease to be a Director or Alternate Director when no longer a 18 
member of the MOWD’s staff or of the Board of Directors; and 19 

WHEREAS, the Director and Alternate Director shall serve for a period of two 20 
years, as will be determined by resolution at the first regular meeting of the UVR 21 
Groundwater Agency Board; and 22 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Meiners Oaks 23 
Water District, as follows: 24 

1. All the recitals in this resolution are true and correct and the Meiners Oaks25 
Water District so finds, determines and represents.26 

2. The Meiners Oaks Water District Board of Directors hereby appoints27 
Diana Engle as the Director and appoints James Kentosh as the Alternate28 
Director to represent the Meiners Oaks Water District on the UVR29 
Groundwater Agency Board.30 

3. The individuals appointed as the Director and Alternate Director are both a31 
member of the Meiners Oaks Water District’s staff or of the Board of32 
Directors, as required by the JPA.33 

4. The MOWD Board of Directors hereby confirms that the Director and34 
Alternate Director appointed pursuant to this resolution are authorized to35 

Page 22 of 54



represent MOWD’s interest with respect to all matters that come before 1 
the UVR Groundwater Agency Board. 2 

5. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and adoption.3 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing 4 

Resolution No. 011822-1, replacing Resolution No. 042021, was duly adopted and 5 
passed by the Meiners Oaks Water Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting 6 
held on the 18th day of January, 2022, by the following vote: 7 

AYES: 8 

NOES: 9 

ABSENT: 10 

________________________________ 11 

Michel Etchart, President 12 

Meiners Oaks Water District 13 

ATTEST: 14 

15 

_____________________________ 16 

Summer Ward, Board Secretary 17 

Page 23 of 54



Page 24 of 54



Page 25 of 54



Page 26 of 54



Page 27 of 54



Meiners Oaks Water District 1 

Resolution No. 20220118-2 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MEINERS OAKS 3 
WATER DISTRICT APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS FROM 4 

THE WILDLIFE CONSERVATION BOARD FOR THE VENTURA REGIONAL WATER 5 
MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK FOR IN-STREAM FLOW ENHANCEMENT AND 6 

WATER SECURITY (VRIF 2) PLANNING PROJECTS. 7 

WHEREAS, funds were made available to the Wildlife Conservation Board for 8 
the enhancement or restoration of fish and wildlife habitat and for the development of 9 
public access facilities for hunting, fishing or other wildlife-oriented recreational uses. 10 

WHEREAS, Meiners Oaks Water District intends to propose three planning 11 
projects. The three projects include Waterwise for Vulnerable Communities, Land 12 
Resilience Partnership, Alternative Water Sourcing for Aquatic Ecosystem Health, and 13 
AMI Metering for Evaluation of Water Efficiencies and Streamflow Enhancement.  14 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 15 
Meiners Oaks Water District, herby: 16 

1. Approves the filing of an application for funding from the Wildlife17 
Conservation Board; and18 

2. Certifies that said applicant will comply with all federal, state, and local19 
environmental, public health, and other appropriate laws and regulations20 
applicable to the project and will obtain or will ensure that the other project21 
partners obtain all appropriate permits applicable to the project; and22 

3. Further commits to the terms and conditions specified in the grant23 
agreement; and24 

4. Appoints the Board President and General Manager as representatives of25 
Meiners Oaks Water District to conduct negotiations, execute, submit and26 
sign all documents including but not limited to applications, agreements,27 
amendments, payment requests, and other documents which may be28 
necessary for the completion of the proposed project.29 

30 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing 31 

Resolution No. 20220118-2 was duly adopted and passed by the Meiners Oaks Water 32 
Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting held on the 18th day of January, 33 
2022, by the following vote: 34 

35 

Page 28 of 54



AYES: 1 

NOES: 2 

ABSENT: 3 

________________________________ 4 

Michel Etchart, President 5 

Meiners Oaks Water District 6 

ATTEST: 7 

8 

_____________________________ 9 

Summer Ward, Board Secretary 10 

Page 29 of 54



1 

NOTE:  THIS WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE BOARD MEETING IN JANUARY 2022 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT  
January 6, 2022 

Meeting Minutes for the Committee on 

New Meters and Expansion of Service 

Committee  New Meters and Expansion of Service  

Meeting Date January 6, 2022 at 2:00 PM by videoconference 

Attendance  Justin Martinez – General Manager 

Summer Ward – Board Secretary   

Loni Anderson – Director  

Jim Kentosh – Director  

Chris Oakland – Director (As an observer)  

Topics  Background on draft policy for new meters and expansion of 

service   

The purpose of the meeting was to discuss background information and prior attempts to 

develop a policy on new meters and expansion of service, an effort that was delayed by 

the pandemic.  A key issue for discussion and resolution is whether MOWD intends to 

continue its moratorium on new water meters.  That, in turn, greatly affects any policy on 

new meters.   

MOWD enacted its moratorium on new meters early in the drought, around 2012.  Back 

then, there were many uncertainties that have since been resolved.  For example, we now 

know that we are able to take 100% of our water supply from Casitas MWD when our 

wells are inadequate, and in 2018 we signed a water service agreement with them.  None 

of the directors who voted for the original moratorium now serve on the Board.  The 

Committee agreed to bring this issue before the full board to discuss and resolve whether 

the moratorium should continue.  Depending on the outcome, the Committee will revise 

the draft policy for future consideration by the Board with public input.   

Despite nearly 10 years of drought, MOWD is the only local water agency we know of 

that has enacted a moratorium on new hookups.  Our backup water supplier, Casitas 

MWD, allows a limited number of new water services, normally adding less than 10 acre-

Page 30 of 54



Meiners Oaks Water District       January 6, 2022

2 

feet of new demand each year.  Meanwhile, the housing shortage has created a flurry of 

State legislation on second dwelling units, lot splits and other measures to increase the 

housing supply.  It’s hard to keep up with the new rules.   

One option for consideration by the Board would be as follows:  

 When our new policy is adopted, we would rescind our moratorium on new 

meters. 

 When a property has sufficient existing MOWD water allocation to support a 

proposed  new dwelling, we would reassign their allocation, within limits and 

allowances to be established by the new policy.   

 If a property does not have sufficient MOWD allocation to support a new 

dwelling, we would ask the project proponent to purchase additional allocation 

from Casitas MWD.  They would pay Casitas MWD’s connection and allocation 

fees, as required by our agreement with Casitas MWD.   

 Once Casitas MWD transfers the additional allocation to MOWD, we would 

provide a new meter to the property.  

With this approach, MOWD would stay away from regulating land use, which is not our 

responsibility.  Instead, we would rely on Casitas MWD to weigh its regional water 

supplies and demands before allowing additional water hookups within our area.  As a 

contractor for the State Water Project, which MOWD’s customers have helped pay for, 

Casitas MWD is somewhat responsible for providing a backup water supply for the Ojai 

Valley and east Ventura.   

Details for how this would work would be developed as part of a future policy on new 

meters and expansion of service, to be adopted by the Board with our customers’ input.  

That might include a 1-page bill stuffer to explain the policy.   

Page 31 of 54



1 

Prepared by: 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

For the 

Ventura County Resource Conservation District, and 

California Wildlife Conservation Board  

Ventura Watershed Flow Enhancement and Water Resiliency 

Regional Framework Project 

Project 25 – Pumping and Nutrient Balance Project  

Agreement No. WC-1844AB 

Project ID 2019023 

January 10, 2022 

Quarterly Progress Report – October 1 through December 31, 2021  

( Preliminary Feasibility Study for   

Nitrate Removal From MOWD Well No. 8 ) 

Note:  The Statement of Services is provided later in this progress report. 

Summary of Progress During the Quarter 

Nearly all of the work on the feasibility study was completed by the end of the quarter.  

Michael K. Nunley & Associates submitted a final review copy of their report Nitrate 

Removal Feasibility Report to MOWD on November 17, 2021.  Several MOWD staff 

and directors reviewed the report and provided comments.  A final meeting between 

MOWD and MKN & Associates was held on December 14, 2021 to discuss the 

comments and provide direction to them for finalizing the report.  The final report is 

Page 32 of 54



Meiners Oaks Water District           January 10, 2022 

2 

being prepared and should be delivered soon.  A copy of the draft report is available upon 

request. 

Once the final report is delivered, we will have completed all of the work specified in the 

grant agreement.   

One of the grant tasks was to “refine estimates of potential instream flow benefits.”  To 

accomplish that, MOWD prepared a preliminary report titled Supplemental Report on the 

Ecological Benefits of Nitrate Removal from MOWD’s Well No. 8.  A copy is attached to 

this status report.  The simple analysis provided in the report suggests that there may be 

significant benefits to the aquatic environment from using Well No. 8.  However, further 

study is required and might be accomplished with the use of the ground/surface water 

model being developed by the Department of Water Resources for the Ventura River.   

Reimbursable Expenses During the Quarter 

We had reimbursable expenses during the quarter, as described and requested herein.  

Goals for Next Quarter 

Our accomplishments for the October – December 2022 quarter are as follows: 

MKN prepared the final draft report for review by MOWD 

MOWD reviewed the final draft report   

A meeting was held to provide comments to MKN 

The final feasibility report is nearly completed   

A brief report on the potential aquatic benefits of the project was completed. 

Our goals for next quarter include the following: 

Complete the final feasibility report 

Post the report on MOWD’s website 

Prepare a final status report on the grant work completed 

Close out the project 

As we near completion on this first phase of the project, it is important for MOWD to 

make plans to proceed to the next phase, beyond the scope of the grant agreement.  Based 

on the results of the feasibility study, it appears that a blending option may be feasible to 

allow the use of Well No. 8. 

This project is not a stand-alone project for MOWD but should be developed as part of an 

overall strategy for balancing the water demands of people with the need for improving 

the aquatic environment.  A strategy for proceeding with both aspects will be provided in 

the final status report.   

Questions 

If there are any questions on this Progress Report, please call Summer at (805) 646-2114 

for financial/administrative questions; or Jim Kentosh at (805) 646-2622 or via email at 

kentosh@meinersoakswater.com with technical questions.   

Page 33 of 54

mailto:kentosh@meinersoakswater.com


Meiners Oaks Water District           January 10, 2022 

3 

Ventura Watershed Flow Enhancement and Water Resiliency Regional Framework 

Grant Agreement No. WC-1844AB 

Project ID 2019023 

Period 10/1/2021 through 12/31/2021  

Statement of Services 
Progress Report #6 

Section 1.  Activities performed during the quarter 

Invoiced Services 

Invoiced services for the quarter include MOWD’s share of an invoice from MKN & 

Associates.  See the attached Disbursement Request Form and attachments for details.  

Our grant agreement provides us with $26,700 of grant funding for Task 3, while our 

matching funds of $4,395 represents 14% of the Task 3 amount.  Therefore we have 

requested a reimbursement of 86% of the MKN invoice amount.   

Match Services 

Match services were provided during the quarter, for project management, for collection 

of information, and for our 86% share of the MKN consulting services for Task 3, as 

provided in Exhibit B of our grant agreement.   

Section 2.  Percentages of Tasks Completed as of the End of the Quarter 

Task 1 – Project Management – 95% 

Task 2 – Integrated Water Management Framework and Action Identification – 100% 

Task 3 – Final (100%) Design Plans, Due Diligence, and Permitting – 95% 

Task 4 – Regional Guidance and Recommendations – Not part of MOWD’s work 

Task 5 – Education and Outreach – Not part of MOWD’s work   

Section 3.  Deliverables Completed for Each Task as of the End of the Quarter 

Task 1 – Project Management – 95% 

1) Invoices and Progress Reports – 90%

Six quarterly progress reports have been prepared.

2) Copies of Executed Subcontracts (>$10,000) – 100%

A copy of the consulting subcontract with MKN & Associates was previously provided.

3) Draft Final and Final Report (including all related data) – 98%

Page 34 of 54



Meiners Oaks Water District           January 10, 2022 

4 

Task 2 – Integrated Water Management Framework and Action Identification – 100% 

1) Draft Appendix to Pumping and Nutrient Balance Project Report – 100%

Completed work on this task in the quarter.

We have opted to utilize this work as a stand-alone report rather than as an appendix to

the Feasibility Report.

2) Management Strategies:  Recommendations for Water Managers for

Water Resiliency – 100%

Completed work on this task in the quarter.

Task 3 – Final (100%) Design Plans, Due Diligence, and Permitting – 98% 

Project 25 – Pumping and Nutrient Balance Project – 98% 

 Feasibility Study – 95% 

Evaluate methods of nitrate removal – 100% 

Final recommendation is for the blending option. 

Evaluate brine disposal options – 100% 

Have met with OVSD staff. 

Estimate project costs – 100% 

Study blending options – 100%  

A simple blending option has been identified.  

Develop project approach and schedule – 100% 

 Coordinate with OVSD for brine disposal options – 100% 

Met with OVSD.  

 Refined estimate of potential instream flow benefits  100% 

Completed this task as a stand-alone report.  

Section 4.  Problems/Delays and Proposed Resolution 

We expect to meet the project deadline of March 2022.  

Section 5.  List of Proposed Activities and Tasks for the Next Quarter 

Our goals for the next quarter are as follows: 

Complete the final feasibility report 

Post the report on MOWD’s website 

Prepare a final status report on the grant work completed 

Close out the project 

Begin to plan for follow-on work after the grant tasks are completed 

Page 35 of 54



Supplemental Report on the 

Ecological Benefits of Nitrate Removal from MOWD’s Well No. 8  

Prepared by 

Meiners Oaks Water District 

January 10, 2022   

Introduction   

A potential project to remove nitrates from MOWD’s Well No. 8 is intended to benefit both 

people and the aquatic environment:  MOWD would develop a supplemental water supply it 

could use to meet its customers’ demands, while the aquatic ecosystem of the Upper Ventura 

River would benefit from the removal of nitrate-laden groundwater that might otherwise migrate 

downstream and promote the growth of excess algae when it resurfaced as rising groundwater.  

The purpose of this supplemental report is to develop a simple evaluation of the relative order of 

magnitude of the possible ecological benefits of the project.  Further analysis would be required 

to model those benefits and provide more affirmative results.   

This supplemental report was prepared by MOWD and is provided as a separate supplement to 

the Nitrate Removal Feasibility Report prepared by Michael K. Nunley & Associates.  No review 

or approval of this supplemental report by MKN is implied.   

This supplemental report is also intended to meet part of the requirements of a grant from the 

California Wildlife Conservation Board.  The grant was awarded to and is being managed by the 

Ventura County Resource Conservation District (VCRCD).  The overall multi-agency program is 

called the Ventura Watershed Flow Enhancement and Water Resiliency Regional Framework 

Project.  MOWD’s portion of the program is “Project 25 – Pumping and Nutrient Balance 

Project.”  MOWD has signed an agreement with VCRCD, No. WC-1844AB, for the work.  The 

work addressed in this supplemental report is to provide a “refined estimate of potential instream 

flow benefits.” 

Page 36 of 54



MOWD Ecological Benefits of Nitrate Removal 

2 

Net Nitrate Removal by Well No. 8  

The first step is to estimate how much nitrate would be removed from the alluvial aquifer system 

by the preferred project.   

During the preparation of the Feasibility Report it was determined that a viable blending option 

exists, where the high nitrate water from Well 8 would be blended with lower nitrate water from 

Wells No. 4 and No. 7.  Due to its lower capital and operating costs, this is the alternative that is 

analyzed in this Supplemental Report.   

Section 2.2 of the Feasibility Report estimates the average nitrate level of Well No. 8 to be 54 

mg/L (Nitrate as NO3 – as used in this Supplemental Report.).  The nitrate level in Well No. 4 is 

found to be 9.4 mg/L and Well No. 7 to be 7.1 mg/L.  A combined nitrate level of 8 mg/L is 

assumed in this supplemental report for blending purposes.  That value somewhat overstates 

nitrate levels in the water used for blending, by treating a maximum as a mean.  (The net result is 

a slight underestimate of the amount of nitrate removed from the aquifer.)   

Without blending or nitrate removal, MOWD would not use Well No. 8 but would pump more 

water from Wells No. 4 and No. 7.  With blending, MOWD would substitute some of the water 

that would have been pumped from Wells No. 4 and No. 7 with higher nitrate water from Well 

No. 8.  For each liter of water pumped from Well No. 8, the net benefit to the aquifer would be a 

reduction in nitrate of 54 mg/L – 8 mg/L = 46 mg/L.  This is because a liter of low nitrate water 

would be left in the ground while a liter of higher nitrate would be pumped out for consumption.  

At Well No. 8’s nominal pumping capacity of 330 gpm, about 180 pounds of nitrate would be 

removed from the aquifer each day, compared to the no-project alternative.   

While that amount can be removed in the high-demand summer months, it may not be achievable 

year round, due to seasonal variations in water demands.  Table 2-3 of the Feasibility Report 

finds that a flow of 484 gpm from Wells No. 4 and No. 7 is required to blend with 330 gpm from 

Well No. 8.  Thus, only about 41% of the blended water could be pumped from Well No. 8.  

During drought periods, when the aquatic environment is under the most stress, MOWD delivers 

only around 700 AF/yr of water to its customers.  Under optimal conditions, deliveries from 

Well No. 8 would be limited to 41% of that amount, for a total of 280 AF from Well No. 8.  That 

amount of pumping from Well No. 8 would remove around 35,000 pounds of nitrate from the 

aquifer each year.   

Page 37 of 54



MOWD Ecological Benefits of Nitrate Removal 

3 

Compare to Nitrates in the River 

Use of Well No. 8 could remove approximately 180 pounds of nitrate from the aquifer system a 

day, for a maximum of around 35,000 pounds of nitrate a year.  Would removal of that amount 

of nitrate have a significant beneficial impact on the aquatic ecosystem, or is it a relative “drop in 

the bucket?”  To answer that question, a simplified analysis is provided below:   

Perhaps the most critical reach in the Ventura River watershed occurs just downstream of the 

confluence of the Ventura River and San Antonio Creek.  The California Department of Fish and 

Wildlife has identified that reach as critical for the migration and rearing of endangered steelhead 

trout.   

The County of Ventura Environmental Health Division monitors nitrate levels in local 

groundwater and surface water.  They funded the following report:   

Technical Report for the Study of Water Quality Impairments Attributable to   

Onsite Wastewater Treatment Systems (OWTS) in the Ventura River Watershed,  

Prepared by Geosyntec Consultants, September 2018.  Available online.   

This report summarizes nitrate levels at many surface and ground water sampling sites within the 

County.  Surface water sampling location SW-03-U is located in the Ventura River a short 

distance downstream of the confluence of the Ventura River and San Antonio Creek, as shown in 

Table 5 and Figure 9 of the report.  Table 13 of the report indicates that the average nitrate level 

at sample location SW-03-U was 1.35 mg/L as N, which is equivalent to 6.0 mg/L as NO3.  We 

use that value as indicative of present nitrate levels in the river at that location during dry 

periods.   

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife is studying surface flows in the Ventura River.  

One of their relevant reports is cited below:   

Study Plan:  Habitat and Instream Flow Evaluation for Steelhead in the Ventura River, 

Ventura County, by California Department of Fish and Wildlife, January 2017.   

Table 1 of that report provides natural flows at several locations that would be expected with no 

human influences.  The location “Ventura River 4” represents the Ventura River a short distance 

downstream of its confluence with San Antonio Creek.  The average dry-year flow at that 

location from June through November is 1.3 CFS.  The average moderate-year flow from June 

through November is 11 CFS.   

Page 38 of 54



MOWD Ecological Benefits of Nitrate Removal 

4 

If the results of the Fish and Wildlife report are combined with the results of the Ventura County 

nitrate study, the following results are obtained downstream of the confluence:   

1) A dry year flow of 1.3 CFS at an average nitrate level of 6.0 mg/L represents 43 pounds

per day of nitrate flowing past the sample location.

2) A moderate-year flow of 11 CFS flowing past the sample location at an average nitrate

level of 6.0 mg/L represents 360 pounds per day of nitrate.

This somewhat surprising result suggests that the nitrates removed from the alluvial aquifer by 

pumping and blending water from Well No. 8 are on the same order of magnitude as nitrate 

levels present in the river.  In dry years, when oxygen depletion by nutrients is most dangerous 

for the aquatic environment, around four times more nitrate would be removed by running Well 

No. 8 than is already present in the surface water of the Ventura River.  In moderate years, 

running Well No. 8 would remove about half as much nitrate as is present in the river.   

(Note that modern flows in the Ventura River may be somewhat lower than historical flows.  

Using those reduced flows in the analysis would increase the apparent benefits of pumping   

Well No. 8.)  

More Study Needed 

The preceding analysis is simplistic and provides merely an order-of-magnitude estimate of the 

relative benefits of pumping and using nitrate laden water from Well No. 8.  It does not consider 

whether or how groundwater will migrate through the aquifer to re-emerge as rising groundwater 

downstream, and how much that would reduce nitrate levels in surface water.  Yet it does 

suggest that further study might be worthwhile.   

The Department of Water Resources is developing a model of surface and ground water in the 

Ventura River basins.  When functional, that model might answer the question of how much of 

the groundwater in the vicinity of Well No. 8 would eventually reach the surface water of the 

river downstream, and how much nitrate dilution would occur.   

There is not universal agreement on the origin of nitrates in the river and how much of a problem 

they are for the ecology of aquatic life.  High quantities of dead algae found periodically in the 

upstream reaches of the watershed, far upstream from human influence, suggest that nutrient 

problems may be intractable.  Human sources of nitrates include fertilizers, septic systems, and 

pet waste.   

Page 39 of 54



MOWD Ecological Benefits of Nitrate Removal 

5 

Well No. 8 is just one of many wells in the Ojai Valley.  If consensus is reached that reducing 

nitrate levels in the aquatic environment would be beneficial, then the results of this simplified 

analysis suggest that a methodical change to water system operations – prioritizing the removal 

of higher nitrate water from the aquifers – could be undertaken to achieve those benefits.  In 

essence, removing nitrates from contaminated plumes might be an effective strategy.  MOWD’s 

Well No. 8 project could be a good place to start.   

Page 40 of 54



December 2021 

1 

District Summary/Update 

• Casitas Lake Level: 35.2% 1/13/2022
• Purchased Water: The demand on our system has slowed down and the south casitas connection has been turned off as of 10/28/2021.

The Fairview connection was turned off 1-6-2022. MOWD had continued limited blending with Casitas through December.
• Meiners Rd Tank: Removal (Complete)
• Tank Farm: Tanks have been inspected by CSI (Report In Progress)
• Vehicles: Golf Cart and Old Crew Truck sold at auction for $20,776
• Wells:  Wells 1 & 2 on-line as of 1-7-2022

   Wells 4 & 7 on-line as of 1-13-2022 
• Grant Funding: Well Feasibility Study, Land Resiliency Partnership Projects, Advanced Metering Infrastructure (application in process)
• Seasonal Rain Fall Totals:  Casitas Dam  15.11” 

 Matilija Dam       19.63” 
 Stewart Canyon     15.97” 
 Nordhoff Ridge       20.43” 

Scheduled/Unscheduled Work 
Type of Repair Cause Date Location Contractor Amount $ 

Tank Removal Age/Leak 12-21-2021 Meiners Rd Toro $17,268.00 

Water Main 
Leak 

Age/Poor 
Bedding 

12/31/2021 Meiners Rd Sam Hill TBD 

Pave & Backfill Leak 1/5/2022 Meiners Rd Sam Hill TBD 

Blending MOWD 
& CMWD 

Well 4&7 
Casitas 

11-21-2021
11-28-2021

Staff N/A 

Page 41 of 54



December 2021 

2 

Current Well Levels and Specific Capacity 

WELL #1 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) OFF OFF 31.52 27 34.74 36.1 39.2 31.5 35.35 35.3 32.5 26.6 

RUNNING (ft) OFF OFF OFF 41 43.24 38.3 40.95 31.75 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) 7.7 OFF OFF 14 8.5 2.2 1.75 .25 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 191 187 105 104 97 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) 13.0 OFF OFF 13.86 22 47.73 59.42 ERROR OFF OFF OFF OFF 

WELL #2 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 35.5 28.9 31.23 37 37.4 37 40.95 32.3 34.1 34.4 31.8 25.95 

RUNNING (ft) OFF OFF OFF 49.9 47.4 42.4 44.1 33.1 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF OFF OFF 12.9 10 5.4 3.15 .8 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 126 127 82 59 59 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF OFF OFF 9.84 12.7 15.19 18.73 73.75 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

WELL #4 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 48.9 28.9 45.70 47.9 52.40 57.6 67.3 70.3 60.8 61.7 62 52.3 

RUNNING (ft) 97.0 76.8 77.35 80.3 79.90 81.7 80.4 85.55 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) 48.1 35.9 31.65 32.4 27.5 24.1 13.1 15.25 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) 375 388 375 390 197 178 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) 7.3 10.1 11.84 11.98 13.63 16.18 15.03 11.67 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

WELL #7 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 53.9 46.9 50.60 54 54.70 60.3 70.2 72.9 63.3 63.7 64.65 55 

RUNNING (ft) 62.7 50.1 53.15 58 60.40 64.1 73.5 77.2 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) 8.8 3.2 2.55 4 5.7 3.8 3.3 4.3 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) 292 337 278 280 172 167 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) 32.9 92.5 114.51 84.25 48.77 73.8 52.12 38.83 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

WELL #8 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) OFF OFF OFF 67.6 65.7 68.3 72.6 71 73 74.05 71.5 65.5 

RUNNING (ft) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Page 42 of 54



December 2021 

3 

Water Pumped, Sold, Purchased & Water Sales 
MONTH PUMPED (AF) SOLD (AF) PURCHASED (AF) WATER SALES 

($) 
JAN 0 40.35 40.35 $55,869.54 
FEB 59.13 43.26 0 $45,273.85 

MAR 45.88 37.35 0 $38,245.86 
APR 54.26 52.05 0        $52,993.98 
MAY 55.31 53.77 0 $50,789.57 
JUN 68.5 68.23 0 $69,254.64 
JUL 74.30 66.27 1.46 $78,149.92 

AUG 46.76 72.24 13.2 $73,260.72 
SEP 0.00 66.49 66.49 $79,486.92 
OCT 3.14 56.89 53.75 $56,983.68 
NOV 2.21 45.07 48.80 $43,449.12 
DEC 2.44 40.98 42.52 $47,960.64 

TOTAL 2021 231.65 423.83 217.77 $648,269.32 
TOTAL 2020 485.71 635.47 197.26 $657,912.06 

Reserve Funds 
* Balance at the County of Ventura  $ 1,416,968.70     

Total Taxes  $ 99,941.76 

Total Interest from reserve account#        $ 0.00 

Fiscal Year Total Revenues 
July 1st – December 31 st   2020     $ 887,951.17 

July 1st – December 31 st   2021     $ 855,418.19 

Page 43 of 54



December 2021 

4 

Bank Balances 
* LAIF Balance           $ 230,058.96 
Transferred from L.A.I.F. to General       $ 0.00 
(#) Quarterly Interest from LAIF        $0.00 

* Money Market (Mechanics Bank)   $ 7,622.85 

Amount Transferred to Mechanics from County this month         $0.00 
Amount Transferred to General Fund from Money Market        $ 0.00 
Monthly Interest received from Money Market     $ .13 

General Fund Balance  $ 96,608.57 

Trust Fund Balance    $ 7,234.86 

* Capital Improvement Fund  $ 14,062.07 

 (#) Quarterly Interest from Capital Account                $ .12 

 Total Interest accrued  $ 00.25 

Page 44 of 54



December 2021 

5 

Capital Improvement Projects for 2021-2022 
Budgeted capital funds $ 724,000.00 FY 2021-2022 

1. Well 8 Nitrate Feasibility Study (In Progress)
2. Engineer design report for the treatment plant (100% In Process)
3. Valve Replacements
4. El Sol and Lomita Tie-in (Engineering, TBD)
5. Tank Cleaning and Inspection (Complete)
6. Remove Meiners Rd Tank & Antenna Tower Install (Complete)
7. Chlorine Gas Alarms at well sites
8. Install CL17 at Wells 4 & 7
9. Crane for New Service Truck (Complete)
10. Air Compressor
11. Service Truck Generator
12. Service Truck Welder
13. Service Truck Tool (Complete)
14. Leak Detector/Sounder
15. Appropriations and Contingencies

Page 45 of 54



Board Secretary Report – January 2022 

January 2022 

1. Administrative
• CA Executive Orders N-42-20 moratorium on customer disconnections for non-payment expired

December 31, 2021, CA SB 998 now active.
• SWRCB Water Arrearage Payment Program application submitted to cover all residential

arrearages accrued between March 2020 – June 2021, plus administrative costs, totalling
$15,000.

• Form 700 Conflict of Interest forms notices have been sent out by Ventura County.
• Public Records requests: UVRGA for updated well level and pumping data Oct 2019 – Sep

2021; Ventura County Public Works request for utility information - Project #81905 (Matilija Dam
Removal); VC Reporter attorney contract for adjudication lawsuit and board vote tally for Moll
litigation.

• SWRCB Emergency Regulation program adopted January 4, 2022 and effective January 14,
2022, drought contingency plans for water waste. MOWD Drought Contingency Plan last
updated 2017, will be updated to reflect current emergency regulations and allocation program
changes.Recommend a customer bill insert reminding customers of water conservation
measures.

2. Financial (any items not covered in separate Financials Report)

a. Audit for FY 20-21 – Fanning & Karrh, CPA engagement letter.
b. Accounts Receivable –The CA Executive Order 42-20 is set to expire on 12/31/2021.

Customers’  full balances will be due after 12/31/2021, or they can contact the office to setup a
12-month payment plan per Gov. Code §60372(2). Account holder letters were mailed in
December and will receive updated notices in January 2022. The “new” 4/1/2020 SB 998
timeline for disconnects for non-payment (>$200 @ 60 days) is in effect. CA SWRCB Arrearage
Payment Program funds will be credited directly to accounts with balances remaining from
March 2020 – June 2021.

3. Projects
a. Allocation Program: new allocations active as of December 31, 2021 billing.
b. District job description and salary table review and updates.
c. Policy & Procedure review and web posting.

4. Billing/Customer Service
a. Casitas Connection turned on 7/27/2021.

Page 46 of 54



Board Secretary Report – January 2022 

Month #Total 
Service 
Orders 

# Account 
Owner 

Changes 

Monthly 
Customer Bill 

Total 

Monthly 
Casitas 

Surcharge 

Over-
Allocation 

 $ (drought) 

Other 
Conservation 

Penalties 
Jan 20 88 5 $103,517.04 $0 $3,060.00 $0 
Feb 20 75 11 $102,457.21 $0 $1,919.00 $0 
Mar 20 109 11 $104,012.24 $0 $1,849.00 $0 
Apr 20 78 9 $ 94,817.80 $0 $1,106.00 $0 
May 20 112 2 $124,586.74 $0 $5,220.00 $0 
Jun 20 201 7 $144,471.57 $0 $9,483.00 $0 
Jul 20 246 27 $144,736.42 $0 $8,937.00 $0 
Aug 20 147 18 $148,635.97 $0 $10,417.00 $0 
Sep 20 210 18 $164,667.04 $0 $14,472.00 $0 
Oct 20 93 12 $172,773.27 $23,868.19 $9,958.00 $0 
Nov 20 79 7 $172,514.41 $37,554.48 $6,779.00 $0 
Dec 20 74 5 $130,327.05 $0 $5,631.00 $0 
Jan 21 89 12 $115,479.25 $0 $2,730.00 $0 
Feb 21 75 13 $108,605.39 $0 $2,460.00 $0 
Mar 21 73 16 $108,985.68 $0 $1,936.00 $0 
Apr 21 125 9 $127,363.90 $0 $5,084.00 $0 
May 21 134 11 $129,394.85 $0 $5,525.00 $0 
Jun 21 72 20 $147,682.37 $0 $9,566.00 $0 
Jul 21 139 8 $145,721.09 $0 $8,865.00 $0 
Aug 21 151 13 $153,370.61 $0 $10,660.00 $0 
Sep 21 116 10 $174,988.52 $29,089.01 $8,742.00 $0 
Oct 21 93 17 $163,260.86 $31,512.78 $6,206.00 $0 
Nov 21 52 15 $141,776.01 $25,886.00 $3,094.00 $0 
Dec 21 53 6 $141,663.91 $27,318.06 $3,002.00 $0 
Note: May 2020 over-allocation fees increase attributed to very high Ag consumption, (1) account over 500 units, and 
(2) accounts both over 850 units each. These reads were verified, and meters did not indicate leaks. Jun-Aug meter
readings indicated significant abnormally high consumption, several customer leaks, and increased irrigation overall.
Aug 2021 70% were due to abnormal consumption during meter reading.

Board of Directors 

 Board Member Position Term Ends Term Type 
Michel Etchart President 2022 Long Term (Re-elected 2018) 

James Kentosh Vice President 2022 Long Term (Re-elected 2018) 
Diana Engle Director 2024 Long Term (Re-elected 2020) 

Christian Oakland Director 2024 Long Term (Elected 2020) 
Loni Anderson Director 2022 Appointed July 2021 

5. Complaints & Compliments

Recommended Actions:  Receive an update from the Board Secretary concerning miscellaneous matters 
and District correspondence. Provide feedback to staff. 

Attachments:  SWRCB Emergency Regulations – water waste. 

Page 47 of 54



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-0002 

TO ADOPT AN EMERGENCY REGULATION 
TO SUPPLEMENT VOLUNTARY WATER CONSERVATION

WHEREAS:

1. On April 21, May 10, and July 8, 2021, Governor Newsom issued
proclamations that a state of emergency exists in a total of 50 counties due
to severe drought conditions and directed state agencies to take
immediate action to preserve critical water supplies and mitigate the
effects of drought and ensure the protection of health, safety, and the
environment.

2. On October 19, 2021, Governor Newsom signed a proclamation extending
the drought emergency statewide and further urging Californians to reduce
their water use.

3. There is no guarantee that winter precipitation will alleviate the current
drought conditions.

4. Many Californians have taken bold steps over the years to reduce water
use; nevertheless, the severity of the current drought and uncertainty
about Water Year 2022 require additional conservation actions from
residents and businesses.

5. Water conservation is the easiest, most efficient, and most cost-effective
way to quickly reduce water demand and extend supplies into the next
year, providing flexibility for all California communities. Water saved is
water available next year, giving water suppliers the flexibility to manage
their systems efficiently. The more water that is conserved now, the less
likely it is that a community will experience such dire circumstances or that
water rationing will be required.

6. Most Californians use more water outdoors than indoors. In many areas,
50 percent or more of daily water use is for lawns and outdoor
landscaping. Outdoor water use is generally discretionary, and many
irrigated landscapes would not suffer greatly from receiving a decreased
amount of water.

Page 48 of 54



2

7. Public information and awareness are critical to achieving conservation
goals, and the Save Our Water campaign (SaveOurWater.com), run jointly
by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) and the Association of
California Water Agencies, is an excellent resource for conservation
information and messaging that is integral to effective drought response.

8. SaveWater.CA.Gov is an online tool designed to help save water in
communities. This website lets anyone easily report water waste from their
phone, tablet, or computer by simply selecting the type of water waste they
see, typing in the address where the waste is occurring, and clicking send.
These reports are filed directly with the State Water Resources Control
Board (State Water Board or Board) and relevant local water supplier.

9. Enforcement against water waste is a key tool in conservation programs.
When conservation becomes a social norm in a community, the need for
enforcement is reduced or eliminated.

10. On October 19, 2021, the Governor suspended the environmental review
required by the California Environmental Quality Act to allow State Water
Board-adopted drought conservation emergency regulations and other
actions to take place quickly to respond to emergency conditions.

11. Water Code section 1058.5 grants the State Water Board the authority to
adopt emergency regulations in certain drought years in order to: “prevent
the waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable method of use, or
unreasonable method of diversion, of water, to promote water recycling or
water conservation, to require curtailment of diversions when water is not
available under the diverter’s priority of right, or in furtherance of any of the
foregoing, to require reporting of diversion or use or the preparation of
monitoring reports.”

12. On November 30, 2021, the State Water Board issued public notice that
the State Water Board would consider the adoption of the regulation at the
Board’s regularly scheduled January 4, 2022 public meeting, in
accordance with applicable State laws and regulations. The State Water
Board also distributed for public review and comment a Finding of
Emergency that complies with State laws and regulations.

13. The emergency regulation sets a minimum standard that many
communities are already doing more but not everyone is taking these low-
cost, easy to implement actions that can save significant amounts of water
during a drought emergency.

Page 49 of 54

http://www.saveourwater.com/
https://savewater.ca.gov/


3

14. Disadvantaged communities may require assistance in increasing water
conservation, and state and local agencies should look for opportunities to
provide assistance in promoting water conservation, including but not
limited to translation of regulation text and dissemination of water
conservation announcements into languages spoken by at least 10 percent
of the people who reside in a water supplier’s service area, such as in
newspaper advertisements, bill inserts, website homepage, social media,
and notices in public libraries.

15. The Board directs staff to consider the following in pursuing any
enforcement of section 995, subdivision (b)(1)(A)-(F): before imposing
monetary penalties, staff shall provide one or more warnings; monetary
penalties must be based on an ability to pay determination, consider
allowing a payment plan of at least 12 months, and shall not result in a tax
lien; and Board enforcement shall not result in shutoff.

16. The Board encourages entities other than Board staff that consider any
enforcement of this regulation to apply these same factors identified in
resolved paragraph 15. Nothing in the regulation or in the enforcement
provisions of the regulation precludes a local agency from exercising its
authority to adopt more stringent conservation measures. Moreover, the
Water Code does not impose a mandatory penalty for violations of the
regulation adopted by this resolution, and local agencies retain their
enforcement discretion in enforcing the regulation, to the extent authorized,
and may develop their own progressive enforcement practices to
encourage conservation.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The State Water Board adopts California Code of Regulations, title 23,
section 995, as appended to this resolution as an emergency regulation.

2. State Water Board staff will submit the regulation to the Office of
Administrative Law (OAL) for final approval.

3. If, during the approval process, State Water Board staff, the State Water
Board, or OAL determines that minor corrections to the language of the
regulation or supporting documentation are needed for clarity or
consistency, the State Water Board Executive Director or designee may
make such changes.

Page 50 of 54



4

4. This regulation shall remain in effect for one year after filing with the
Secretary of State unless the State Water Board determines that it is no
longer necessary due to changed conditions or unless the State Water
Board renews the regulation due to continued drought conditions, as
described in Water Code section 1058.5.

5. The State Water Board directs State Water Board staff to work with the
Department of Water Resources and the Save Our Water campaign to
disseminate information regarding the emergency regulations.

6. Nothing in the regulation or in the enforcement provisions of the regulation
precludes a local agency from exercising its authority to adopt more
stringent conservation measures. Local agencies are encouraged to
develop their own progressive enforcement practices to promote
conservation.

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Clerk to the Board does hereby certify that the foregoing is a 
full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly adopted at a meeting 
of the State Water Resources Control Board held on January 4, 2022. 

AYE: Vice Chair Dorene D’Adamo
Board Member Sean Maguire
Board Member Laurel Firestone
Board Member Nichole Morgan

NAY:  None
ABSENT: Chair E. Joaquin Esquivel
ABSTAIN: None

Jeanine Townsend
Clerk to the Board

Page 51 of 54



5

ADOPTED TEXT OF EMERGENCY REGULATION

Title 23.  Waters
Division 3. State Water Resources Control Board and Regional Water Quality 
Control Boards
Chapter 3.5.  Urban Water Use Efficiency and Conservation
Article 2.  Prevention of Drought Wasteful Water Uses

§ 995. Wasteful and Unreasonable Water Uses.

(a) As used in this section:
(1) “Turf” has the same meaning as in section 491.
(2) “Incidental runoff” means unintended amounts (volume) of runoff, such as
unintended, minimal overspray from sprinklers that escapes the area of intended use. 
Water leaving an intended use area is not considered incidental if it is part of the facility 
or system design, if it is due to excessive application, if it is due to intentional overflow 
or application, or if it is due to negligence.  

(b)(1) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, the 
use of water is prohibited as identified in this subdivision for the following actions:

(A) The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner that
causes more than incidental runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, 
non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, parking lots, or 
structures; 
(B) The use of a hose that dispenses water to wash a motor vehicle, except
where the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle or device attached to it that causes 
it to cease dispensing water immediately when not in use; 
(C) The use of potable water for washing sidewalks, driveways, buildings,
structures, patios, parking lots, or other hard surfaced areas, except in cases 
where health and safety are at risk; 
(D) The use of potable water for street cleaning or construction site preparation
purposes, unless no other method can be used or as needed to protect the 
health and safety of the public;
(E) The use of potable water for decorative fountains or the filling or topping-off of
decorative lakes or ponds, with exceptions for those decorative fountains, lakes, 
or ponds that use pumps to recirculate water and only require refilling to replace 
evaporative losses;
(F) The application of water to irrigate turf and ornamental landscapes during and
within 48 hours after measurable rainfall of at least one fourth of one inch of rain. 
In determining whether measurable rainfall of at least fourth of one inch of rain 
occurred in a given area, enforcement may be based on records of the National 
Weather Service, the closest CIMIS station to the parcel, or any other reliable 
source of rainfall data available to the entity undertaking enforcement of this 
subdivision; and
(G) The use of potable water for irrigation of ornamental turf on public street
medians. 

Page 52 of 54



6

(2) Notwithstanding subdivision (b)(1), the use of water is not prohibited by this section
to the extent necessary to address an immediate health and safety need. This may 
include, but is not limited to, the use of potable water in a fountain or water feature when 
required to be potable because human contact is expected to occur.

(c)(1) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, 
any homeowners’ association or community service organization or similar entity is 
prohibited from:

(A) Taking or threatening to take any action to enforce any provision of the
governing documents or architectural or landscaping guidelines or policies of a 
common interest development where that provision is void or unenforceable 
under section 4735, subdivisions (a) and (b) of the Civil Code; 
(B) Imposing or threatening to impose a fine, assessment, or other monetary
penalty against any owner of a separate interest for reducing or eliminating the 
watering of vegetation or lawns during a declared drought emergency, as 
described in section 4735, subdivision (c) of the Civil Code; or
(C) Requiring an owner of a separate interest upon which water-efficient
landscaping measures have been installed in response to a declared drought 
emergency, as described in section 4735, subdivisions (c) and (d) of the Civil 
Code, to reverse or remove the water-efficient landscaping measures upon the 
conclusion of the state of emergency.

(2) As used in this subdivision:
(A) “Architectural or landscaping guidelines or policies” includes any formal or
informal rules other than the governing documents of a common interest
development.
(B) “Homeowners’ association” means an “association” as defined in section
4080 of the Civil Code.
(C) “Common interest development” has the same meaning as in section 4100 of
the Civil Code.
(D) “Community service organization or similar entity” has the same meaning as
in section 4110 of the Civil Code.
(E) “Governing documents” has the same meaning as in section 4150 of the Civil
Code.
(F) “Separate interest” has the same meaning as in section 4185 of the Civil
Code.

(3) If a disciplinary proceeding or other proceeding to enforce a rule in violation of
subdivision (c)(1) is initiated, each day the proceeding remains pending shall constitute 
a separate violation of this regulation.

(d) To prevent the unreasonable use of water and to promote water conservation, any
city, county, or city and county is prohibited from imposing a fine under any local 
maintenance ordinance or other relevant ordinance as prohibited by section 8627.7 of 
the Government Code.

Page 53 of 54



7

(e) The taking of any action prohibited in subdivision (b), (c) or (d) is an infraction
punishable by a fine of up to five hundred dollars ($500) for each day in which the 
violation occurs. The fine for the infraction is in addition to, and does not supersede or 
limit, any other remedies, civil or criminal.

(f) A decision or order issued under this section by the Board or an officer or employee
of the Board is subject to reconsideration under article 2 (commencing with section 
1122) of chapter 4 of part 1 of division 2 of the Water Code. 

Authority:  Section 1058.5, Water Code. 
References:  Article X, Section 2, California Constitution; Sections 4080, 4100, 4110, 
4150, 4185, and 4735, Civil Code; Section 8627.7, Government Code; Sections 102, 
104, 105, 275, 350, 491, and 1122, Water Code; Light v. State Water Resources 
Control Board (2014) 226 Cal.App.4th 1463; Stanford Vina Ranch Irrigation Co. v. State 
of California (2020) 50 Cal.App.5th 976. 

Page 54 of 54


	MOWD Regular Board Agenda 01182022
	Item 3 12-21-21 Regular Minutes
	Item 6 AP Report 121621-011521
	Item 6a Income 1221
	Item 6b Expenditures
	Item 6c Board Financial Graphs
	Item 7a Resolution 20220118 AB361- Brown Act Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency (Subsequent)
	Item 7b Director Compensation Ordinance 21-11-16-v3
	Item 7c MOWD Resolution 20220118-1 UVRGA Director and Alternate for 22-24
	Item 7d Fanning & Karrh Engagement Letter
	Item 7e Resolution 20220118-2 VRIF 2 Grant Planning Project
	Item 7f NewMExoS Minutes 1-6-22
	Item 7g MOWD Grant Status Report 1-10-22 (002)
	Item 7g1 Aquatic Benefits-Well 8 report 1-10-22 (002)
	Item 8 December 2021 G.M. Report
	Item 9 Board Secretary Report January 2022
	Item 9a SWRCB Emergency Regulation Resolution
	STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2022-0002  TO ADOPT AN EMERGENCY REGULATION TO SUPPLEMENT VOLUNTARY WATER CONSERVATION




